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College of the Pacific Becomes Phi Once More
86th Chapter for Theta

e
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“The old song rings in a glad refrain, as we
circle again in Phi. .. .” The last time any mem-
bers of Phi chapter of Stanford University sang
this chorus was with choking voices at the 1946
Grand Convention in Pasadena. Two years
earlier all Panhellenic charters had been revoked
on that campus.

Now, in 1960, we can teach words and music
to new members once more—not at Stanford,
but at the college of Phi chapter’s origin. Over
70 years ago—at what was then the University
of the Pacific in San Jose—the second chapter
of Theta west of the Mississippi was chartered
as Phi. But Phi remained on the San Jose cam-
pus only two years. The fabulously-endowed
Leland Stanford Junior University opened its
doors to “the children of California,” includ-
ing, “no more than 500 women,” in October,
1891.

Most of the members of Phi transferred to the
new campus. They petitioned Grand Council to
let them take their charter with them. Hestitat-
ing until they could be sure what kind of
women would go to Stanford, Council decreed
that the wife of the head of the Civil Engineer-
ing Department, Charles D. ("Daddy”) Marx,
would hold the precious document in safe keep-
ing. Harriet Grotecloss Marx, Cornell (Iota),
was wise and persuasive. Very shortly she was
presiding at the pledging of a class of Stanford
Thetas—the first Greek letter women on that
campus.

Dr. David Starr Jordan, the first president of
Stanford, was a Delta Upsilon from Cornell.

His daughter, Edith, became a Theta in 1893
as some years later did Elsie Branner, daughter
of John Casper Branner, second president of
Stanford.

Phi chapter became the first Panhellenic
group in the United States to build its own
chapter house; and for 52 years the chapter
functioned as a constructive, integral part of
the Stanford family, giving leaders to the cam-
pus and fraternity. Among them, Elizabeth
Hogue Moore, "01, became Professor of Nursing
and head of the nursing school of Stanford
Medical college, designed the Stanford Nurses’
Home, and served as head nurse of the Stan-
ford Base Hospital overseas in World War I,
was president of the San Francisco Women's
City Club, and later Grand President of Kappa
Alpha Theta.
~ Minna Stillman and Bernice Tompkins each
served terms as national archivist; Ada Ed-
wards Laughlin, Helen Green Cross, Carol
Green Wilson were district presidents at various
times. Carol Green Wilson wrote We Who
Wear Kites, Ruth Jordan Wilbur was state
chairman, first for Minnesota and now, for the
past 14 years, for northern California,

As the years wore on, during the depression
Stanford made provision to enroll more than
the formerly stipulated 300 women. But the
Administration would not allow more Panhel-
lenic groups to come onto campus. Because of
this arbitrary action, the percentage of women
students who could be taken into Greek letter
groups became disproportionately small, with
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the result that a considerable antifraternity feel-
ing built up.

In 1944 fraternity alumnz first heard over
public radio that women’s Panhellenic groups
were to be abolished at Stanford over a period
of time. In the light of such official hostility
(among other things President Ray Lyman Wil-
bur had broken his pact with Panhellenic groups
that he would not act further against them with-
out consulting alumnz) the national Grand
Councils withdrew all Stanford charters.

In the intervening years the University of
the Pacific was re-established as the College of
the Pacific and moved from San Jose to Stock-
ton, Calif. Here, under the able leadership of its
long-time president, Tully Knoles, it attained
high scholastic and collegiate reputation. As a
part of a well-executed campus building pro-
gram, Fraternity Circle and Sorority Circle were
developed, with substantial and attractive brick
houses.

One of these locals, Alpha Theta Tau, had a
history dating back to 1881. As Sophlechtia, a
literary society on the San Jose campus, it had
been the group which petitioned and became
Kappa Alpha Theta. The few members remain-
ing at San Jose after Phi was transferred to
Stanford carried on under the name of Alpha
Theta Tau. Patiently, through the long years,
this group was welded into a strong local, al-

© Who was who and what was what at College af Pacific
installatian. Piciurs, opposite page, partion of hecd table
at Dec. 12 banguet. L. to r., Lacal Installatian Chrm. Doris
Bath Layson; Pres, College of Pacific Dr. Robert E. Burns;
Theta Grand Pres. Lletty Munz; Nail. Insiallation Chrm.
Virginia Schmid; Grand VP Alice Gonser, Mrs. Robert E.
Burns.

e Above, right, from tap ta battom: Signing guest baok
at Dec. 13 tea is Mrs. Ethel McCoy, Manor Hall hause-
mother at College of Pacific, assisted by Sarah Nelson
{standing) and Barbara Butterbaugh.

© A ftrio with smiles (and reason io smile} an way fo
banguet, 1. to r., Virginia Schmid, Letty Munz, EST Helen
Sackett,

© Tea fable and invited local fraternity men guests. Pouring,
Mrs. lvan Rowland, College of Pacific faculty memver;
assisting, Brenda Black.

o Reflecting on work well done and making plans for future
of new chapier are I. to r., Banquet Chrm. Georgia Driver
Harrison; Virginia Schmid; Active Pres. Dyan Brown; Active
VP Beth Akers; Daris Bath Layson.

o Only mother-daughter combination of the insiallation,
Marlee Stark and Mothers’ Club president, Frances Russell
Stork.
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A toble full af new pledges of Phi chapter ot banquet.
L., front-bcck, Sharon Judy Wilson, Ann
Rossi, Llinda Kelly, Sally Storm, Pairicia Bridewater. R.,
front-back, Gwen Hefner, Diana Shadwsll, Edith Barker,
Kay Borch, Sally Copp, Elizabeth Armell.

Daraskavich,

ways dreaming of the time when national fra-
ternities would be welcomed to College of the
Pacific.

That time finally came. On October 2, 1959
members of Alpha Theta Tau were pledged to
Kappa Alpha Theta to re-establish Phi chapter.
Grand Vice President Alice Gonser represented
Grand Council. And the rest of the officiating
group symbolized the complete history of Phi.
Bernice Tompkins, whose mother had been in
the original chapter, came from San Jose, with
some of the members of San Jose (Gamma Xi),
for whom she has long been faculty advisor.
Katherine Traphagen Davis, Stanford, 04, came
from Fresno with Joan Law Moore, 2 member
of the last class pledged at Stanford and now
alumne District IX president. And I, who had
initiated Bernice as our first Phi daughter in
1913, had the privilege of speaking in truth
“with care and loving thought, we, the mem-
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bers of Phi chapter, have chosen you. . . ."” as

Kaprpa ArLpHA THETA

the other three took turns in pinning on the
black and gold pledge pins.—CaroL GREEN
WILSON.

A brand new Kappa Alpha Theta name plate
shining on the door served to give the red brick
house a special glow of welcome for the return-
ing alumne, Saturday, December 12, 1959, for
their day of initiation into Kappa Alpha Theta.
The college members of Phi, who had been in-
itiated the evening before with the assistance of
college members from Omega, Beta Mu, Gamma
Xi, and Gamma Chi, the other chapters in Dis-
trict IX, welcomed the alumnz members.

In the morning, 56 alumnz were pledged by
Joan Law Moore, Stanford (Phi) assisted by
Dyan Brown, college chapter president and Ruth
Jordan Wilbur, Stanford (Phi), northern Cali-
fornia state chairman. Loyalty pledge service
was conducted by Virginia Schmid, installation
chairman from Grand Council, assisted by Kath-
ryn Cassin, San Jose (Gamma Xi), and college
members from Gamma Xi.

Initiation was held for 80 alumnz members
during the day, with Letty Munz, grand presi-
dent, Helen Sackett, executive secretary-treas-
urer, Alice Gonser, grand vice president, Doro-
thy Paterson, college District IX president, and
Bernice Tompkins, having leading roles.

The installation banquet was held in the
Women's Residence Hall Saturday night with
Virginia Schmid as toastmistress.

The weekend closed with Sunday services at
Morris Chapel, a model meeting, and a tea at
the chapter house. Delta Gamma and Delta
Delta Delta, who also established chapters at
College of the Pacific, were among the guests.

Active members initiated were (listed accord-

Newly initiated actives of Phi chapier. For names, see accompanying article.
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ing to placing in picture): Frons

Judith Berry, Modesto;
Sarzah  Nelson, Dhahran,
Nzpa; Susan  McCzughey,
Pasadena. Middle row, Gertrude Lammers, Sierra Madre;
Breadz Black, Coronz Del Mazr; Marlene Moanese,
aywzard; Jeanette Smith, Los Angeles; Ruth Bateman,
Pzlo Alto; Dyan Brown, Palo Alto; Elizzbeth Akers, Boulder
City, Ney.; Patricia Schwartz, San Leandro; Jar\et Bazrron,
Sonora; Marlee Stark, Szn Jose. Back row, ]c.mce O'Donnell,
Judy Hanshue, Los Gatos; Marilyn Holappa, Stockton;
en Townsend, Los Angeles; Leda Ad’ms, Fresno ;
ene Sutherland, Escalon; Barbara Butterba ugh, Ventu'a,

row, 1. to r.,

nhattan Beach;
B .\0rm= Frost,
Madden,

Emmy Rose, Man
Saudi  Arabia
Berkeley; arbara

S_ndr Young, F\Jlﬂrcon Gwen Johnson, Szn Mzteo; Sharon
Kennev, Plessanton; Flo.\'"nce Heakin, Szn Frmcxsco Dian
\ﬁder Hilisborough; Sonja Jahamon Szn Francxsca Jozn
Bender, Sacramento ; Je_n Wa s, San Luis Obispo; 3ally
f\naclerm Lzfayette, Not in picture: Geraldine Henderson,
Stockton; Jznice Simpson, Auburn; Pamela Derby. Los
Gatos: Barbarz Fridell, Orinda; Elizabeth Imrie, Diablo.
Alumnz members initiated were: Patricia Rob-

s Miller, Srayton, Ore.; and from Californiz, Virginia
Rexroth Tzfjen, Ozkland; Patricia Thomas Lane, Plessanton;
Nancy Hzne, Pacific Grm., Margaret Bzird Stevens, Aletha
Canning EDDe:son Thalia Allen Mast, Woodland; Grace
Conner Lusk }\ﬂrme Snyder Lyon, \anc'- Mezloney ]onnson,
Ardys Mar Sibale Heilman, Merrilyn McFarland Carson,
Marilyn Meister Hanson, Sacramento; Frances Russell St tark,
Elnz Miller Leicester, Helen Rowe Sebben, Fajth Cmm'm?v
Davies, San Josz; Verda Lease Honerlzh, Santz Clara;
l‘vn Dinubilo Hobgood, Evelvn Cary Hdssbaum, Menlo
s Mavhew Miesse, Parific Palisadezs; Florence

T , Oru Jones ]ohnson Saratoga; Florence Miller
ng, Be :v Lou Cooper, Beity Jean Ashley Weiss, Frances
. Mazrjorie Stanley Cullen, Katherine Wezver, Ruth
Hersh"] ann, San Frsr’ cisco;  Caroline Su'lnm

n-

Tolme D e Hobl_rg, M=r:£d “Sharon Crowe, Al stoe, ]apet
Gaston Stockstill, Mzzr.me‘., th:le) Johnston Nunn, Bent-
wood ; Elizzbeth Mathews Lundy, San Mariro ; Margaret Mell,
Pz:a'mm. > Marge Crummey Rnbholtz Burlingame ; Pzuline
Kyte Hom.,r, Sen Bruno; Dorothy Knoles McAllister, Jean
C Aord Feldmiller, San Mateo; Barba "a Merrell Graessle,

Monter

¢y, Betly Caster Irwin, Orinda; Ruth Simonson, San
Ls rrdu, "Barbara Lawrence Wilbur,
B

H/s’r.:* Creek; Dorothy
ud Craig, Los Angeles; ];ne Foster Carter, Ca/um, Mary
Johnson, Fresmo; and from Stockton, Vanadeane
a 011, Svlvia Ishkanian Connﬂl"- Beverly Brown, Patricia
Logan, Jane Wall Auld, Bernita Salmon Hobin,
et Revburn Collis, Sharon Robinson Landeck, Betty
Behney Genuit, Dorothy S*ﬂmy Schuler, Joan DeMartini Fay,
Shirley Brothers Meyer, Inge Hoekendijk Wilcox. Erlene
Peirano Rasp, Phyllis Pyle Berdnt, Jean Goodwin Holt,
Barbara ]ordﬂn Cook, Nancy Abbott Swift. Virginiz Weston
Blewett, Margaret Lee Kemp, Dorothy Deering Steiner, Eloise
Ames Reid. Nyla Brichetto Fornaciari, Helen Wilcox Klein.
Mazrion Starkey Webster, Mary Roberts Normzn, Nancy
Robinson Farnum. Marilyn Curnow Alfein, Janis Robinson
Jzcobs, Marilyn Thomas Flock, Virginiz Wirth Roberts,

San Jose Thetas added a special touch by sur-
prising Phi with the gift of the silver pieces
which had belonged to Phi chapter at Stanford
and which had been passed on to Gamma Xi
on their activation in 1948.

Another link with the past occurred Sunday
at the model meeting when Bernice Tompkins,
Stanford (Phi), presented the chapter with a
badge made from the old dies (Kappa Alpha
Theta founders’ pin) in memory of her mother,
Nellie Jones Tompkins, the University of the
Pacific (Phi), to be used as a rotating scholar-
ship award.

Phi, Stanford, was represented by five mem-
bers on Saturday—Bernice Tompkins, Ruth Wil-
bur, and Joan Moore plus Antonia Hyatt and
Phyllis Hyatt Gardiner from Sacramento.

Local committee members who worked on in-
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Patricia Bridgewater and Beity Imrie look over reserved
section held for Theta in College of Pacific Morris Chapel
for ¢ a.m. Sunday services after installation.

numerable details of installation weekend were:
Doris Bath Layson, chrm., Raylyn Kinney Hoo-
ver, Nevada (Beta Mu) ; Beth Lou Lundy Doe,
Lois Garibaldi Wentzel, San Jose (Gamma Xi) ;
Georgia Driver Harrison, Oregon State (Beta
Epsilon) ; Mary Sue Simmons La Rue, Ran-
dolph-Macon (Beta Beta); Susan F. Catts,
Calif.-Berkeley (Omega), Bonnie Von Wald
Bowman, San Jose (Gamma Xi); Alice Yordi
Seemann, Nevada (Beta Mu).

Thus Phi is reactivated with a strong and
thriving chapter, already established in a gra-
cious and substantial home. Efficient alumnz,
both locally and throughout California, have al-
ready shown interest and enthusiasm. It augurs
a good future—RUTH JORDAN WILBUR.

Installation is over; back to the books! Conferring about
books taken out of Irving Martin Memorial Library {back-

ground) are 1., Marilyn Holoppa, Marlee Siark.



